
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
8 September 2021 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Thursday 16 September 2021 at 7.30 pm in Roller City, 
Campus West, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6BX. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2021 
(previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 
Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 
The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

9.   SIX MONTH COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULE - WAIVER AND EXTENSION 
OF TIME LIMIT (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

 Report of the Monitoring Officer on a request for a waiver of the six month 
attendance rule and extension of time limit for Councillor Steven Markiewicz. 
 

10.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS  
 

Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 
 
1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Glyn Hayes 
 

“Given that the new Common car park has been highlighted for a design award 
can the leader explain why there is no provision for Disabled Electric charge 
points?” 

 
2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Russ Platt 
 

“As a councillor for a ward with a high number of council properties, I am extremely 
concerned and angered about the council's failure to carry out statutory safety 
checks.  

The gap between first indications of a problem and referral to the regulator appears 
to have been well over a year, all the while tenants were paying rent on properties 
where statutory checks had not been carried. Why was this gap so long?” 

3. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lucy Musk 

“With residents being forced out of their homes whilst major repairs take place over 
a period of months, can the leader explain how it is justifiable to charge tenants 
rent and council tax during this time?” 

4. Question to the Leader from Councillor Ayesha Rohale 

“Would the leader of the council explain the role Mears had in ensuring electrical 
safety testing in council owned properties took place over the life of the contract 
that has recently been terminated?” 

5. Question to the Leader from Councillor Tamsin Jackson-Mynott 

“In the light of the focus on fire risk assessments after the loss of so many lives in 
the Grenfell disaster, how is it possible for the administration at this Borough 
Council to have failed to notice that statutory fire risk assessment testing had not 
taken place on 90% of council properties?” 

6. Question to the Leader from Councillor Helen Quenet 

“When elected as Councillors we want to serve our residents to the best of our 
ability. A necessary part of that is that we receive training in the functions of our 
role, so that we can spot and challenge problems before they threaten the 
wellbeing of our residents. 
 

To this end, I requested at the Member Training meeting on Tuesday 17th August 
that all members of the Cabinet Housing Panel receive training in the statutory 
duties of landlords. In addition to this I asked that there should be either a 
document or training provided for all councillors on all the statutory duties of the 
council. 
 

Can the Leader confirm that this training is going to be provided for members?"” 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



 

7. Question to the Leader from Councillor Paul Zukowskyj 

“The regulator for Social Housing noted that 90% of WHBC Social Housing 
buildings needing a Fire Risk Assessment either did not have one at all or it was 
out of date. How many buildings does this mean, how many are today now up to 
standard, when should we expect them all to be up to standard and since these 
are multiple dwelling buildings and there may be multiple residents per dwelling, 
what is the estimated number of residents that were put at risk by this council’s 
failings?” 

8. Question to the Leader from Councillor Frank Marsh 

“The council’s failure to deliver statutory checks on council properties is clearly an 
issue that needs the full attention of this council and it’s members, however to date 
no meetings or scrutiny of the issues has been scheduled. I would like to know 
when there will be an honest question and answer session for councillors with 
senior officers, past and present portfolio holders and including members of the 
cabinet." 

 
 

Page 4



Part I 
Item No: 8 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Paul Zukowskyj 

and will be seconded by Councillor Kieran Thorpe:- 

Recent revelations that this Council failed to conduct basic statutory electricity, 
fire, asbestos and water safety checks in their residential buildings, possibly 
endangering the lives of the residents are deeply worrying.    

Councillors were appalled to hear how this Conservative led council mis-managed 
these duties so badly that they had to refer the council to the regulator and tried 
to keep this situation hidden, even from Councillors.   

Despite Councillors frequently raising worrying cases of maintenance failures in 
the past, they were consistently told there were no deep-rooted problems when 
there obviously were.  

The Councillors and the public deserve an account of how this situation arose and 
how this knowledge will be used to prevent a failure of this magnitude occurring 
again.    

The Council have spent considerable time investigating and collating the failings 
and the systemic faults that led to this situation must be apparent.   

Whilst there may be some points that cannot be shared in public, a substantive 
explanation must still be given and the continuing culture of secrecy dropped.    

In the absence of any explanation as to how this situation has arisen, this Council 
reluctantly expresses no confidence in the Leader of the Council who holds 
ultimate responsibility for its actions and failings.. 

2. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Samuel Kasumu 
and will be seconded by Councillor Sunny Thusu:- 

This Council notes that the leader has guided the Council through a turbulent time, 
ensuring that residents, businesses, and employees of the Council were able to 
have the support and protection they have needed during the pandemic. 

We acknowledge that the report by the Regulator of Social Housing highlighted 
overdue assessments and outstanding actions, and welcome the decisive action 
taken to rectify this. 

However, the Council completely rejects the claim that the leader hid the problems 
that were highlighted by the Regulator in any way. 

We note that the Council, overseen by the leader, self referred to the Regulator 
and that the leader of the Council kept other group leaders appraised at all times. 

This Council has full confidence in the leader of the Council.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Alison Marston  
Executive Member: Cllr Nick Pace 
Not Ward Specific  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 16 SEPTEMBER 2021 
REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 

SIX MONTH COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULE – WAIVER AND EXTENSION OF 
TIME LIMIT  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to ask the Council to consider a formal request from 
the Leader of the Council, Councillor T. Kingsbury for Council to agree a waiver of 
the six-month attendance rule and extension of the time limit for Councillor Steven 
Markiewicz for the reasons set out in the report. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That the request for Councillor Steven Markiewicz’s absence from attendance at 
meetings of the authority for a period exceeding six months be approved in 
accordance with Section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the 
extension of the time limit be approved for a further period until 5 May 2022.   

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Council is aware that Councillor Steven Markiewicz has been unable to attend 
meetings due to his long-term health issues and he may be unable to attend 
meetings for the foreseeable future.  

3.2 As the last meeting attended by Councillor Markiewicz was the Council Meeting 
on 17 March 2021 he will on 17 September 2021 have been unable to attend a 
meeting for six months. 

3.3 It is good practice for the Council to consider the circumstances of a Member’s 
absence from attendance at meetings when the period of absence is approaching 
six months in view of the legal requirements about membership of a local authority.  

3.4 If a Member fails throughout a period of six consecutive months from the date of 
their last attendance to attend any meeting of the authority, they will, unless the 
failure was due to some reason approved by the Council before the expiry of that 
period, cease to be a Member of the authority. This is the last meeting of the 
Council before the expiry of the six-month period. 

3.5 The Council can approve the reason for a Member’s absence from attendance at 
meetings for a period exceeding six months in accordance with Section 85 of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  

3.6 It is proposed that for the reason set out in this report, the time limit for absence 
from meetings be further extended until 5 May 2022.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication 

4.1 Section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 enables a local authority to 
approve reasons for the non-attendance of a Member at any meeting throughout 

Page 7

Agenda Item 9



- 2 - 

a period of six consecutive months, provided that approval is given before the 
expiry of the six-month period.   

5 Financial Implication 

5.1 There is no financial implication arising directly from the recommendation in this 
report. 

6 Risk Management Implication 

6.1 The risk related to this proposal is that if approval is not given at this meeting 
Councillor Markiewicz will cease to be a Member of the authority on 17 September 
2021. Likelihood High, Impact High. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

There are no security or terrorism implications. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

There are no procurement implications. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

There are no climate change implications.  

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

There are no Human Resources implications. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

There are no Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

12 Community and Engagement Implication(s) 

There are no Community and Engagement Implication(s). 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to a statutory requirement under local 
government legislation. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out in connection with the 
proposal set out in this report. 

 
Name of author Alison Marston 
Title Governance Services Manager 
Date 24 August 2021 
 
 
Background papers to be listed  

None 

Page 8


	Agenda
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8 NOTICES OF MOTIONS
	9 SIX MONTH COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULE - WAIVER AND EXTENSION OF TIME LIMIT

